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DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES NET'WORK and 
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CENTRAL DISTRJCT OF CALIFORNIA 

Case N . 

,,",' 
... < 

1"" 

I, 

t.:: 

DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES 
NETWORK; and UNITED 
CEREBRAL PALSY/SPASTIC 
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COUNTIES, 

COMPLAINT FOl{ 
DECLARATORY AND 
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

Plaintiffs, 

v. 

DA VrD MAXWELL-JOLLY, Director 
of the DeRartment of Health Care 
Services, State of California; and the 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 
I-IEAL TH CARE SERVICES, 

Defendants. 
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I. 
JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. This Court is vested with jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. section 1331 

because this action arises under the laws of the United States, including the 

Suprelnacy Clause of the United States Constitution (U.S. Const., art. VI, cl.2), and 

federal Medicaid law (Title XIX of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1396 et 

seq. (the "Medicaid Act"). (See Shaw v. Delta Air Lines, Inc. (1983) 463 U.S. 85, 

96 n.14 [103 S.Ct. 2890, 2899 n.14, 77 L.Ed.2d 490].) 

2. Venue is proper in this Court, the Central District of California, 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1391 (b) because defendants have an office located in 

this district and the Attorney General has an office in this district, and because the 

impact of the defendants actions were felt in this district, including by the plaintiffs 

in this action whose facilities are located in this district. (See Cal. Code of Civ. 

Proc. § 401(1).) 

II. 
PARTIES 

3. Plaintiff Developmental Services Network ("DSN") is a statewide 

non-profit trade association in California that represents approximately 250 slnall 

intennediate care facilities for people with developmental disabilities. DSN is 

headquartered in Sacralnento, California. The members of DSN are companies 

operating facilities licensed as either "intennediate care facility/developmentally 

disabled-nursing" ("ICF/DD-N") pursuant to California Health & Safety Code 

section 1250(h) or "intermediate care facility/developlnentally disabled­

habilitative" ("ICF /DD-H") pursuant to California Health & Safety Code section 

1250(e). DSN is infonned and believes that all of its Inembers are Medi-Cal 

providers. 

4. Plaintiff United Cerebral Palsy/Spastic Children's Foundation of Los 

Angeles and Ventura Counties, dba United Cerebral Palsy of Los Angeles, Ventura 
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and Santa Barbara Counties ("UCP") is a 501 (c )(3) non-profit public benefit 

association founded in 1945 by a small group of parents who wanted to create 

community-based services for their children with disabilities. UCP is 

headquartered in Woodland Hills, California. Today, UCP operates more than 40 

program sites throughout five counties in Southern California and has extended its 

mission to serve all people with disabilities. UCP provides services to more than 

1,000 children and adults with developmental disabilities daily. UCP is also an 

affiliate of the national United Cerebral Palsy, a nationwide network of over 100 

independent, state and local non-profit affiliates, with a central national 

organization located in Washington, D.C. UCP operates 12 ICF/DD-H hOlnes and 

9 ICF/DD-N homes. Over 99% of the ICF patients served by UCP are Medi-Cal 

eligible and the facilities receive their reimbursement for the care from Medi-Cal. 

5. Defendant David Maxwell-Jolly is the Director of the Department of 

Health Care Services for the State of California ("DHCS"), and, in that capacity, is 

responsible for the overall administration of the Medi -Cal program. (Cal. Welf. & 

Inst. Code § 14100.1; 22 Cal. Code of Regs., § 50004.) 

6. Defendant DHCS is, and at all times mentioned herein was, an agency 

of the State of California. DHCS is the single State agency charged with the 

administration of the Medi-Cal program. (See Cal. Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 10720, et 

seq., 14000 et seq.; 22 Cal. Code of Regs., §§ 50000 et seq.) 

III. 
INTRODUCTION 

7. Plaintiffs bring this lawsuit to challenge the State of California's 

imposition of a permanent "freeze" on the Medi -Cal reimbursement rates paid to 

intermediate care facilities for the developInentally disabled licensed pursuant to 

subdivision (e) or (h) of Section 1250 of the California Health and Safety Code. 

8. The rate freeze was signed into law by California Governor Arnold 

Schwarzenegger on July 28,2009, after the California Legislature adopted 
- 3 - 3745.001-909978.1 
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Assembly Bill 5 of the 2009-10 Fourth Extraordinary Session ("AB 5"), the budget 

trailer bill for California fiscal year 2009-10, which, among other things, added 

subdivision (f)(2)(A) to Section 14105.191 of the California Welfare and 

Institutions Code. 

9. Section 14105.191(f)(2)(A) freezes the Medi-Cal reilnbursement rates 

for services provided certain classes of intermediate care facilities for the 

developmentally disabled "rendered during the 2009-2010 rate year and each rate 

year thereafter" at 2008-09 levels. Plaintiff UCP operates and plaintiff DSN 

represents melnbers who operate the classes of intermediate care facilities for the 

developmentally disabled that are directly injured, by loss of gross income, as a 

11 result of the rate freeze. This injury is directly traceable to the defendants' 

12 implementation of AB 5 and would be redressed by a favorable decision enjoining 

13 the rate freeze. Accordingly, plaintiffs have Article III standing to bring this action. 

14 (See Independent Living Center v. Shewry (9th Cir. 2008) 543 F.3d 1050, 1065.) 

15 10. Plaintiffs allege that AB 5 is preempted by section 30(A) of the 

16 Medicaid Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(30)(A) ("§ 30(A)") because neither the 

1 7 defendants nor the California Legislature considered the "quality of care" or "equal 

18 access" provisions of § 30(A), or whether the frozen reimbursement rates are 

19 reasonably related to provider costs, before its implementation. Plaintiffs also 

20 allege that the rate provisions of AB 5 were implemented in violation of (1) the 

21 public process provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(13)(A) ("§ 13(A)"); (2) the 

22 public notice provisions of 42 C.F.R. § 447.205 ("§ 447.205"); and (3) the 

23 requirements of the Medi-Cal State Plan (the "State Plan"). 

24 11. Plaintiffs seek declaratory and injunctive relief to restrain the 

25 implelnentation and enforcement of the rate freeze provisions of AB 5 at issue in 

26 this case because these State provisions are in violation of federal law and are 

27 preempted under the Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution. 

28 III 
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IV. 
BACKGROUND 

A. Federal Medicaid Law 

12. In 1965, Congress enacted Title XIX of the Social Security Act, 

generally referred to as The Medicaid Act, to provide States with funding to furnish 

medical assistance to individuals "whose income and resources are insufficient to 

Ineet the costs of necessary Inedical services." (42 U.S.C. §§ 1396 et. seq.; Wilder 

v. Va. Hasp. Ass 'n (1990) 496 U.S. 498, 502 [110 S.Ct. 2510,2513, 110 L.Ed.2d 

455].) The Medicaid program authorizes federal financial support to States for 

Inedical assistance to low incolne persons who are aged, blind, disabled, or 

melnbers of families with dependent children. The program is jointly financed by 

the federal and State governments and administered by the States, with the federal 

financial participation level currently ranging between approximately 50 and 83 

percent. The States, in accordance with federal law, determine eligibility of 

particular types of beneficiaries, types and ranges of services, payment levels, and 

administrative and operative procedures. Payment for services is made directly by 

States to the individuals or entities that furnish the services. (42 C.F.R. § 430.0.) 

13. A State's participation in Medicaid is voluntary, but a State that 

chooses to participate must cOlnply with the provisions of the Medicaid Act and its 

implementing regulations. (Alaska Dept. of Health and Social Servs. v. Centers for 

Medicare and Medicaid Servs. (9th Cir. 2005) 424 F.3d 931,935.) Each State 

adlninisters its Medicaid program through a single State agency, which is charged 

with the responsibility of establishing and complying with a State Medicaid plan 

that, in tum, must comply with the applicable provisions of federal Medicaid law, 

including the requirements set forth in 42 U.S.C. § I396a(a)(I)-(70). (42 U.S.C. § 

1396a(a)(5); 42 C.F.R. §§ 430.10 & 431.10.) In California, defendant DRCS is the 

single State agency charged with administration of the California Medicaid 

prograln, which is referred to as "Medi-Cal". 
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1 14. In accordance with the requirements of 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(I)-(70), 

2 California must provide "lnethods and procedures" for the payment of care and 

3 services that (1) are "consistent with efficiency, economy, and quality of care," and 

4 (2) ensure their availability to the Medicaid population to the same "extent as they 

5 are available to the general population in the geographic area." (42 U.S.C. § 

6 1396a(a)(30)(A).) These requirements are known, respectively, as the "quality of 

7 care" and "equal access" provisions of § 30(A) of the Medicaid Act. 

8 15. In Orthodedic Hospital v. Belshe (9th Cir. 1997), 103 F.3d 1491, 1496, 

9 the Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit interpreted § 30(A) to require defendants 

10 to set reimbursement rates that "bear a reasonable relationship to efficient and 

11 economical hospitals' costs of providing quality services, unless the Departlnent 

12 shows some justification for rates that substantially deviate from such costs." (See 

13 also Independent Living Center of So. Cal. v. Maxwell-Jolly (9th Cir. 2009) 572 

14 F.3d 644,651-52.) To meet this statutory requirement, the Ninth Circuit held that 

15 the State "must rely on responsible cost studies, its own or others', that provide 

16 reliable data as a basis for its rate setting." (Orthopedic Hospital, 103 F .3d at 

17 1496.) 

18 16. In addition, for certain providers, including intermediate care facilities 

19 such as plaintiffs and their members, California must establish rates through a 

20 public process that includes publication of the proposed rates and their underlying 

21 methodologies, such that providers are "given a reasonable opportunity for review 

22 and comment." (42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(13)(A) ("§ 13(A)").) 

23 17. In addition, CMS implementing regulations require that public notice 

24 be provided of "any significant proposed change" in the State's setting of payment 

25 rates for services, with exceptions not relevant here. (42 C.F .R. § 447.205 (" § 

26 447.205").) 

27 III 

28 III 
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COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 



Case 2:10-cv-03284-CAS-MAN   Document 1    Filed 04/30/10   Page 7 of 21   Page ID #:7

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 
P., 
....l 1 1 ....l 
0 
-' 
W 
t.L. 

12 z 
w 
0 
:r: 
u 

13 Ul 

~ !;: 
« 
0 

14 < 
z 
f: 
!Jl 

15 :::> 
< 
>-:r: 
P.. 

16 0<. 
:J 
:;;s 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

B. The Establishment Of Intermediate Care Facilities Under Federal 
and State Law 

18. Prior to 1971, facilities for the developinentally disabled were financed 

solely by state, local and private funding. In the Act of Deceinber 14, 1971 (Public 

Law 92-223), Congress enacted legislation that allowed states to cover services in 

intermediate care facilities for the developlnentally disabled (referred to as 

"intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded" in the federal legislation). 

19. Under federal law, "intermediate care facility for mentally retarded" is 

defined as follows: 

The term "intennediate care facility for the Inentally 

retarded" Ineans an institution (or distinct part thereof) for 

the mentally retarded or persons with related conditions if 

(1) the primary purpose of such institution (or distinct 

part thereot) is to provide health or rehabilitative services 

for Inentally retarded individuals and the institution meets 

such standards as may be prescribed by the Secretary; 

(2) the mentally retarded individual with respect to 

whom a request for payment is made under a plan 

approved under this subchapter is receiving active 

treatment under such a prograln; and 

(3) in the case of a public institution, the State or 

political subdivision responsible for the operation of such 

institution has agreed that the non-Federal expenditures in 

any calendar quarter prior to January 1, 1975, with respect 

to services furnished to patients in such institution (or 

distinct part thereof) In the State will not, because of 

- 7 - 3745.001-909978.1 
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paYlnents made under this subchapter, be reduced below 

the average alnount expended for such services in such 

institution in the four quarters immediately preceding the 

quarter in which the State in which such institution is 

located elected to make such services available under its 

plan approved under this subchapter. 

(42 U.S.C. § 1396d(d).) 

20. The State of Cali fomi a Department of Public Health, in turn, issues 

licenses to intennediate care facilities that fall into one of four categories: (1) 

intermediate care facility; (2) intermediate care facility/developmentally disabled 

habilitative ("ICF/DD-H"); (3) intennediate care facility/developmentally disabled; 

and (4) intermediate care facility/developmentally disabled-nursing ("ICF/DD-N"). 

(Cal. Health & Safety Code §§ 1250(d), (e), (g) and (h), respectively.) 

21. Plaintiffs own and operate or represent ICF/DD-H and ICF/DD-N 

facilities only. 

22. An ICF/DD-H facility is defined as "a facility with a capacity of 4 to 

15 beds that provides 24-hour personal care, habilitation, developmental, and 

supportive health services to 15 or fewer persons with developmental disabilities 

who have intermittent recurring needs for nursing services, but have been certified 

by a physician and surgeon as not requiring availability of continuous skilled 

nursing care." (Cal. Health & Safety Code § 1250(e).) 

23. An ICF/DD-N facility is defined as "a facility with a capacity of 4 to 

15 beds that provides 24-hour personal care, developmental services, and nursing 

supervision for persons with developmental disabilities who have intermittent 

recurring needs for skilled nursing care but have been certified by a physician and 

surgeon as not requiring continuous skilled nursing care. The facility shall serve 

medically fragile persons with developmental disabilities or who demonstrate 

significant developmental delay that may lead to a developlnental disability if not 
- 8 - 3745.001-909978.1 
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1 treated." (Cal. Health & Safety Code § 1250(h).) 

2 C. 

3 

The Reimbursement Snstem For Intermediate Care Facilities For 
'the Developmentally isabled - Ha6iIitative and Nursing 

4 24. The California State Plan establishes the principles of the State of 

5 California's reimbursement system for providers of long-term care services to 

6 assure compliance with the requirelnents of Title XIX of the Federal Social 

7 Security Act and the Code of Federal Regulations and describes the procedures to 

8 be followed by DHCS in determining long-term care reimbursement rates. (See 

9 introduction to Attachlnent 4.19-D of the State Plan (effective August 1, 2005), 

10 p.l.) 

11 25. These procedures provide for the establishment of reimbursement 

12 rates. Rates are set for four classes of ICF/DD-Hs and ICF/DD-Ns: ICF/DD-Hs 

13 that are 4-6 bed facilities, ICF/DD-Hs that are 7-15 bed facilities; ICF/DD-Ns that 

14 are 4-6 bed facilities; and ICF/DD-Ns that are 7-15 bed facilities. (Attachment 

15 4.19-D, § 1(1)(3)0) & (k), p.5 (effective August 1,2004).) 

16 26. Reilnbursement rates for ICFs are required to be recalculated annually. 

17 Prospective rates for each class are developed based on cost reports submitted by 

18 the ICFs, as adjusted by randoln audits of a Ininimum of 150/0 of the cost reports. 

19 (Attachment 4.19-D, §§ III(A), p.9 & IV(A)(l)(f) & (g), p.10 (effective August 1, 

20 2004).) Providers have the right to appeal findings which result in an adjustment to 

21 program reimburselnent or reimbursement rates. (Attachlnent 4.19-D, § III(D), p.9 

22 (effective August 1, 2002).) 

23 27. The reilnburselnent rate per patient day is set at the 65th percentile of 

24 projected costs for the class. (Attachment 4.19-D, § IV(F)(9), p.15 (effective 

25 August 1, 2005).) This is a higher reimburselnent rate than other classes of long-

26 term facilities in recognition of the fact that they serve a disproportionate share of 

27 low income patients with special needs. (Jd.) Plaintiffs are informed and believe 

28 that Medi-Cal pays for over 990/0 of the ICF/MR services provided in California. 
- 9 - 3745.001-909978.1 
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28. As long as there is a projected net increase in the California Consulner 

Price Index during the State's fiscal year previous to the new rate year, no 

prospective rate of reimbursement shall be decreased solely because the class 

median projected cost is less than the existing rate of reimbursement. (Attachment 

4.19-D, § IV(F)(5), p.l4 (effective August 1, 2002.) 

29. In addition, since 2003, the State has made a supplemental Medi-Cal 

reimbursement payment on a per diem basis to ICFs over and above the 

reimbursement rate established through the cost report/audit procedures described 

above to support the facilities' quality ilnprovement efforts. (Cal. Health & Safety 

Code § 1324.10.) These paYlnents are currently set at 8.99% of the reimburselnent 

rate. 

30. Since 2003, ICFs are required to relnit to the State a quality assurance 

fee ("QAF") on the entire gross receipts of the ICFs. (Cal. Health & Safety Code § 

1324.2(a).) The QAF rate is currently 5.50/0. The QAF is deposited in the State 

General Fund. (Id., § 1324.8.) 

31. California also represents in the State Plan that it has in place a public 

process that complies with the requirements of Section 1902(a)(13)(A) of the Social 

Security Act. (Attachment 4.19-D, p.22 (effective August 1,2001.) 

D. The Passage Of Assembly Bill 5, Which Freezes ICF Payments At 
2008-09 Rates 

32. On July 2,2009, Assembly Bill 5 ("AB 5") was introduced during the 

2009-10 Fourth Extraordinary Session to address the California state budget as a 

placeholder bill to enact statutory changes relating to the Budget Act of 2009. 

33. AB 5 was amended on July 2,2009, to make numerous changes to the 

Financial, Health & Safety, Insurance and Welfare & Institutions Codes. 

34. One of the changes contained in the amended AB 5 was to amend 

Welfare & Institutions Code section 14105.191 to add subdivision (£)(2), which 

reads, in pertinent part, as follows: 
- 10- 3745.001-909978.1 
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(f)(2) ... Medi-Cal reimbursement rates applicable to the 

following classes of facilities for services rendered during 

the 2009-10 rate year; and each rate year thereafter, shall 

not exceed the reilnbursement rates that were applicable to 

those facilities and services in the 2008-09 rate year: 

(A) Facilities identified in paragraph (5) of 

subdivision (d). 

35. Paragraph (5) of subdivision (d) identifies, in pertinent part, the 

following facilities: "Intermediate care facilities for the developmentally disabled 

licensed pursuant to subdivision (e), (g), or (h) of Section 1250 of the Health and 

Safety Code .... " 

36. As noted in paragraphs 23 and 24, above, subdivisions (e) and (h) of 

Section 1250 of the Health and Safety Code define ICF/DD-Hs and ICF/DD-Ns. 

37. AB 5 was passed by the California State Senate and Assembly on July 

23,2009, and was approved by the Governor on July 28,2009. The bill was 

enacted as an urgency statute and became effective immediately. Defendants 

immediately implelnented the rate freeze and have paid the 2008-09 rate for 

services provided on and after August 1, 2009. 

38. The legislative history does not contain any evidence that either the 

defendants or the California Legislature considered the "quality of care" or "equal 

access" provisions of § 30(A), or whether reimbursement rates are reasonably 

related to provider costs, before its ilnplemented the rate freeze ilnposed by Section 

14105.191(f)(2). 

39. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon allege that no 

responsible cost studies as required by § 30(A) were relied upon by the California 

Legislature or defendants in adopting and implementing Section 

14105.191 (f)(2)(A). 

III 
- 11 -

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

3745.001-909978.1 



Case 2:10-cv-03284-CAS-MAN   Document 1    Filed 04/30/10   Page 12 of 21   Page ID #:12

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 
P-. 
....J 11 ....J 
C: 
..J 
LLl 
We 

12 z 
LLl 
0 
:::r: ?:; 
U <: 

13 UJ ,.J 

Ln I-
:;;: < 
« 
C: 

14 <I:; 
z 
f: 
Ln 

15 :::J 
<I:; 
>-:r: 
c.. 

16 C<: 
:::J 
~ 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

40. Plaintiffs are further infonned and believe and thereon allege that no 

public process as required by § 13(A) and § 447.205 was followed in connection 

with the adoption and implementation of Section 14105.191(f)(2)(A) 

41. Plaintiffs are further infonned and believe and thereon allege that the 

State Plan has not been amended to conform to Section 14105.191(f)(2)(A) that 

payment at the 2008-09 rates is in violation of defendants' reimbursement 

obligations under the State Plan. 

E. DHCS Calculation Of Lon~ Term Care Reimbursement Rates 
Effective From August 1, 2 09 

42. Notwithstanding the enactment of Section 14105.191(f)(2) of the 

California Welfare & Institutions Code, DHCS collected the rate reports and 

conducted its audit process as required by the State Plan for the rate year beginning 

August 1,2009. 

43. DHCS' calculations for the four classes of slnall ICF IDDs for the rates 

effective August 1, 2008 and August 1, 2009 are as follows: 

Facility Group Rate Rate Percent 
effective effective change in 

8/1/2008* 8/1/2009* rates 

ICF/DD-Habilitative 

4-6 Beds $185.50 $197.45 6.440/0 

7-15 Beds $201.77 $201.95 0.090/0 

Weighted ICF/DD-H Rate 186.63 $197.72 6.030/0 

ICF/DD-Nursing 

4-6 Beds $211.63 $230.74 9.030/0 

7-15 Beds $219.79 $232.28 5.680/0 

Weighted ICF/DD-N Rate $212.00 $230.81 8.870/0 

* Includes supplelnental payment for quality improvement efforts. 
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44. The rate study conducted by DHCS demonstrates that were the freeze 

not in place, rates would have been increased on August 1, 2009, by an average of 

6.03% for ICF/DD-H providers and by 8.87% for ICF/DD-N providers. 

45. Since all ICF/DD-Hs and all ICP/DD-Ns would have been reimbursed 

on a per dielTI-per bed basis based on the higher rates effective August 1,2009, all 

ICF/DD-Hs and ICF/DD-Ns, including plaintiffUCP and the lTIelTIbers ofDSN are 

suffering irreparable injury every day they are reimbursed at the 2008 rate as a 

F. 
Rate 

46. On November 24,2009, the California Hospital Association filed a 

lawsuit against defendant Maxwell-lolly, challenging, alTIOng other provisions, the 

Section 14105.191 (f) rate freeze as applied to nursing facilities that are part of 

hospitals (distinct part/nursing facilities or "DPlNFs") and subacute pediatric 

subacute care units that are part of hospitals. (California Hospital Association v. 

Maxwell-Jolly, United States District Court, Central District of California, Western 

Division, Case No. CV 09-8642 CAS (hereafter referred to as "the CHA action").) 

4 7. In the CHA action, as here, the plaintiff alleged that the Section 

14105.191(f) rate freeze violated § 30(A) of the Medicaid Act and was therefore 

invalid under the Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution because 

neither the Director not the California Legislature considered the "quality of care" 

and "equal access" provisions of § 30(A), or whether reilTIbursement rates were 

reasonably related to provider costs, before its implementation. As here, plaintiff 

alleged that the Director failed to comply with § 13(A), § 447.205, and the State 

Plan requirements. 

48. On February 24,2010, this Court granted the CHA plaintiff's lTIotion 

for a preliminary injunction, on the grounds, in part, that the plaintiff had 

demonstrated a likelihood of success on the merits of its § 30(A) claim and had 
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sufficiently demonstrated that there was a likelihood that CRA lnember hospitals 

will suffer monetary losses as a result of the rate freeze implemented by AB 5. 

V. 
COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

COUNT ONE: DECLARATORY RELIEF 

1. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference each of the previous 

allegations set forth in this complaint. 

2. An actual and justiciable controversy has arisen and now exists 

between the parties relating to the issue of whether the rate freeze is a violation of 

federal law. Plaintiff DSN, on behalf of its members, and plaintiff UCP contend 

that the rate freeze is invalid and unlawful in violation of federal statute, federal 

regulations, and the California State Plan, while defendants continue to implement 

and enforce the rate freeze. 

3. The Federal Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2201 empowers 

federal courts to declare the rights and other legal relations of any interested party 

seeking such declaration, and also provides authority for further necessary and 

appropriate relief based on its declaratory judgments. 

4. Rule 57 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure provides that the 

existence of another adequate remedy does not preclude a judglnent for declaratory 

relief in cases where it is appropriate. In addition, the court may order a speedy 

hearing of an action for a declaratory judgment and may advance it on the calendar. 

5. A declaratory judgment is necessary in that plaintiffs contend, and the 

rate freeze imposed by defendants pursuant to California Welfare and Institutions 

Code section 14105.191(f)(2)(A) is preempted by application of the Supremacy 

Clause with respect to the services provided by the ICFs, as described above in this 

COlnplaint. 

6. The members of plaintiff DSN and plaintiffUCP have provided and 

continue to provide intermediate care to developmentally disabled patients and are 
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ready, willing and able to provide these services. The Inembers of plaintiff DSN 

and plaintiff UCP are suffering severe adverse financial impact by reimbursement 

for these services at the 2008-09 rates, since the defendants' own cost studies 

demonstrate that ICF/DD-Hs and ICF/DD-Ns, including the members of plaintiff 

DSN and plaintiff UCP, would be paid at a higher rate using the rate-setting 

methodology prescribed by the State Plan approved by CMS. Therefore, the 

controversy between plaintiffs and the defendants regarding reimbursement for 

these services is imminent and ongoing, there is an ongoing adverse economic 

impact to plaintiffs from the defendants' imposition of the rate freeze, and a 

declaratory judgment is necessary to resolve the rights and duties of the parties. 

7. Plaintiffs have no administrative remedy, or any plain, speedy, or 

adequate relnedy at law and, unless relief is granted as prayed, defendants will 

continue to reimburse plaintiffs pursuant to the rate freeze imposed by California 

Welfare and Institutions Code section 14105.191. 

WHEREFORE, plaintiffs pray for relief as follows: 

COUNT TWO: INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

1. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference each of the previous 

allegations set forth in this complaint. 

2. An actual controversy has arisen and now exists between the parties 

relating to whether the rate freeze imposed by defendants pursuant to California 

Welfare and Institutions Code section 14105.191(£)(2)(1) is a violation of federal 

law. 

3. The melnbers of plaintiff DSN and plaintiff UCP have provided and 

continue to provide intermediate care to developmentally disabled patients and are 

ready, willing and able to provide these services. The members ofplaintiffDSN 

and plaintiff UCP are suffering severe adverse financial impact by reimbursement 

for these services at the 2008-09 rates, since the cost studies demonstrate that they 

would be paid at a higher rate using the rate-setting methodology prescribed by 
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State regulation. Therefore, the controversy between plaintiffs and the defendants 

regarding reiInbursement for these services is imminent and ongoing, there is an 

ongoing adverse econolnic ilnpact to the melnbers of plaintiff DSN and plaintiff 

UCP from the defendants' imposition of the rate freeze, and a mandatory injunction 

is necessary to resolve the rights and duties of the parties. 

4. Plaintiffs seek a mandatory injunction that enjoins defendants from 

implementing or continuing to implement or enforce the rate freeze with respect to 

ICF/DD-Habilitative and ICF/DD-Nursing facilities and requiring defendants to 

reimburse the lnembers of plaintiff DSN and plaintiff UCP at the unfrozen ICF IDD­

Habilitative and ICFIDO-Nursing reimburselnent rates calculated by OHCS to be 

effective August 1,2009, for the 2009-10 fiscal year. 

5. Plaintiffs have no administrative remedy, or any plain, speedy, or 

adequate remedy at law and, unless relief is granted as prayed, defendants will 

continue to impose the rate freeze. 

WHEREFORE, plaintiffs pray for relief as follows: 

VI. 
PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

F or the reasons stated above, plaintiffs respectfully request that the Court 

grant the following relief: 

1. That a declaration issue declaring that the rate freeze established by 

Section 14105.191(f)(2) of the California Welfare & Institutions Code is invalid 

and unenforceable as to the members of plaintiff DSN and plaintiff UCP because 

the rate freeze violates 42 U.S.C. §§ 1396a(a)(30)(A) and 1396a(a)(13), 42 C.F.R. § 

447.205, and the California State Plan, and is thus invalid and preelnpted by the 

Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution, article IV, clause 2. 

2. That a declaration issue declaring that it is a violation of the 

Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution for defendants to fail or refuse 

to reimburse the members of plaintiff OSN and plaintiff UCP at the unfrozen 
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1 ICF/DD-Habilitative and ICF/DD-Nursing reimburselnent rates calculated by 

2 DHCS to be effective August 1,2009, for the 2009-10 fiscal year. 

3 3. That mandatory preliminary and permanent injunctions issue enjoining 

4 defendants from ilnplementing or continuing to ilnplement or enforce the rate 

5 freeze with respect to ICF/DD-Habilitative and ICF/DD-Nursing facilities and 

6 requiring defendants to reimburse the members of plaintiff DSN and plaintiff UCP 

7 at the unfrozen ICF/DD-Habilitative and ICF/DD-Nursing reimburselnent rates 

8 calculated by DHCS to be effective August 1, 2009, for the 2009-10 fiscal year. 

9 4. That plaintiffs be awarded their costs of litigation, including 

10 reasonable attorneys' fees, as permitted; and 

1 1 5. That the Court grant plaintiffs such further and additional relief as the 

12 Court may deem just and proper. 
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Dated: April __ , 2010 Murphy Austin Adams Schoenfeld LLP 

By: 
~KA~T~HR~YN~D~O~I~-----------

JENNY MAE PHILLIPS 

Law Offices of Douglas S. Cumlning 
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DOOGLAS S. COMMING 

Attorney for Plaintiffs 
DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES 
NETWORK; and UNITED 
CEREBRAL PALSY/SPASTIC 
CHILDREN'S FOUNDATION OF 
LOS ANGELES AND VENTURA 
COUNTIES 
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UNITED STAT'ES DISTRICT COURT 
CEN1'RAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE FOR DISCOVERY 

This case has been assigned to District Judge Otis D. Wright II and the assigned 
discovery Magistrate Judge is Margaret A. Nagle. 

The case number on all documents fi.led with the Court should read as follows: 

CVIO- 3284 ODW (MANx) 

Pursuant to General Order 05-07 of the United States District Court for the Central 
District of California, the Magistrate Judge has been designated to hear discovery related 
motions. 

All discovery related lnotions should be noticed 011 the calendar of the Magistrate Judge 

NOTICE TO COUNSEL 

A copy of this notice must be served with the summons and complaint on all defendants (if a removal action is 
filed, a copy of this notice must be served on atl plaintiffs). 

Subsequent documents must be filed at the following location: 

[Xl Western Division 
312 N. Spring St., Rm. G·8 
Los Angeles, CA 900 12 

L1 Southern Division 
411 West Fourth St., Rm. 1-053 
Santa Ana, CA 92701-4516 

Failure to file at the proper location will result In your documents being returned to you. 

U Eastern Division 
3470 Twelfth St., Rm. 134 
Riverside, CA 92501 

CV-18 (03/06) NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE FOR DISCOVERY 
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Central District of California 
Dl;:VELOPMEN'TI\L SERVICES N!;~Tf~ORK; and UNJ'l'ED C'r'J~EBR/\L 

Pi\LSY!SP/\STlC CHILDRi~N'.s FOUNDATION OF LOS l\NGl~Lr~S 

'·,ND vr.;~NTtJl~A COUN'T'; EEl, 

Plaillll.!T 

v. 
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H("il'~ th 

C'IL] FOHN l!\ 

Civil Action 

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION 

To: (!)eji,ndon( 's IJ(}IJJI:' and oddress) 

A lawsu it has been filed against you. 

o 

Within 21 days after service oUhis summons on you (nol counting the day you received it) or 60 days ifyOll 
arc the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. 
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of 
the Federal Rules of Civi I Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, 
whose name and address arc: 
Kathryn Doi, SBN: 121979 

Jenny Mae Phillips, SBN; 255458 

MURPHY AUSTIN ADAMS SCHOENFELD LLP 

30t} "S" Street 

Sacramento, CA 95811 

Tel; (916) 446-2300 Fax: (916) 503 4000 

Douglas S. Cumming, SBN; 88580 

LAW OFFICES OF DOUGLAS S. CUMMING 

542 5th Street 

Lincoln, CA 95648 

Tel: (916) 434-8719 Fax: (916) 64::;-2997 

I r you f~lil to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the rei ief' demanded in the complaint. 
YOLI alsu fnllS! (I Ie your answer or motion vI/it/) the court. 

CLERK OF COURT 

Dale: 
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Civil cases are deemed related if a pJ'eviously filed case and the present case: 

(( 'heck all boxes that apply) r.f A. Arise from the same or c10scly related transactions, happenings, or events; or 

r,{B. Call for determination of the same or substantially related or similar questions of law and Elct; or 

DC. For other reasons would entail substantial duplication of labor ifheard by dilTerentjudges; or 

D. Involve the same patent, trademark or copyright, and one of the factors identified above in a, b or c also is present. 

IX. VENlIE: (When completing the use an ad(Jltlon,al 

(a) List the County in this District; California County outside of this District; State il'other than California; or Foreign Country, in which EACH named plaintiffresides. 
0 Check here if the government, its agencies or employees is a named plaintiff. If this box is checked, go to item (b). 

County in this District:* California County outside of this District; State, if other than California; or Foreign Country 

Los Angeles County Sacramento County 
San Diego County 

(b) List the County in this District; California County outside of this District; State if other than California; or Foreign Country, in which EACH named defendant resides. 
[~ Check here if the government, its agencies or employees is a named defendant If this box is checked, go to item (c) 

I County in this District:* California County outside of this District; State, if other than California; or Foreign Country 

: c) List the County in this District; California County outside of this District; State if other than California; or Foreign Country, in which EACH claim arose. 
Note: In land condemnation cases, use the location of the tract ofland involved. 

County in this District:* California County outside of this District; State, if other than California; or Foreign Country 

All counties All counties 

k Los Angeles, Onlngc, San Benllll"dino, RivCl'side, Ventura, Santa Barbara, OJ" San Luis Obispo Counties 

X. SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY (qR PRO PER): ___ --'-_-="---=--'-________ _ Date __ '_'_-; __________ -L ________________________ __ 

Noticc to Cou nscllParties: The CV -71 (.IS-44) Civil Cover Sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the fiI ing and service of plead ings 
or other papers as required by law. This form, approved by the .Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required pursuant to Local Rule 3-1 is not filed 
but is used by the Clerk of the Court for the purpose of statistics, venue and initiating the civil docket sheet. (For more detailed instructions, see separate instructions sheet.) 

[(ey to Statistical codes 

NatUl'c of Suit Code Abbrcviation 

861 lilA 

862 BL 

863 DIWC 

863 DIWW 

864 SSlD 

865 RSI 

~=V-71 (05/08) 

Substantive Statemcnt of Cause of Action 

All claims for health insurance benefits (Medicare) under Title 18, Part A, of the Social Security Act, as amended. 
Also, include claims by hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, etc., for certification as providers of services under the 
program. (42 U.S.c. 1935FF(b)) 

All claims for "Black Lung" benefits under Title 4, Part B. of the Federal Coal Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969. 
(30 USc. 923) 

All claims filed by insured workers for disability insurance benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as 
amended; plus all claims filed for child's insurance benefits based on disability. (42 U.S.c. 405(g) 

All claims filed for widows or widowers insurance benefits based on disability under Title 2 of the Social Security 
Act, as amended. (42 U.S.c. 405(g)) 

All claims for supplemental security income payments bas,ed upon disability filed under Title 16 orthe Social Security 
Act, as amended. 

All claims for retirement (old age) and survivors benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as amended. (42 
U,S.c. (g» 
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